
1 

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 
FULL BOARD SPECIAL MEETING 

October 22, 2020 
5:00 P.M. 

Meeting Will Be Conducted Via Zoom Conference 

AGENDA 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
The public may observe and/or participate in this meeting many ways. 

OBSERVE: 
• To observe, the public may view the televised video conference by viewing KTOP
channel 10 on Xfinity (Comcast) or ATT Channel 99 and locating City of Oakland
KTOP – Channel 10

• To observe the meeting by video conference, please click on this link: You are
invited to a Zoom webinar.
When: October 22, 2020 5:00PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)

Topic: HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION FULL BOARD SPECIAL 
MEETING October 22, 2020 5:00 PM 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://zoom.us/j/93602177645 
Or iPhone one-tap :  
    US: +16699006833,,93602177645#  or +13462487799,,93602177645# 
Or Telephone: 

 Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
        US: +1 669 900 6833  or +1 346 248 7799  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 312 626 
6799  or +1 929 205 6099  or +1 301 715 8592  
Webinar ID: 936 0217 7645 

 International numbers available: https://zoom.us/u/adf0iazelM 

COMMENT: 

There are two ways to submit public comments. 

• To comment by Zoom video conference, click the “Raise Your Hand” button to
request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on an eligible agenda item
at the beginning of the meeting. You will be permitted to speak during your turn,
allowed to comment, and after the allotted time, re-muted. Instructions on how to
“Raise Your Hand” is available at:
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129 - Raise-Hand-In-Webinar.

• To comment by phone, please call on one of the above listed phone numbers.
You will be prompted to “Raise Your Hand” by pressing “*9” to speak when Public

000001



 

2  

Comment is taken. You will be permitted to speak during your turn, allowed to 
comment, and after the allotted time, re-muted. 
Please unmute yourself by pressing *6. 
 
If you have any questions, please email Bkong-brown@oaklandca.gov. 
 

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
2. ROLL CALL 
3. CONSENT ITEMS 

a) Approval of Board minutes from October 8, 2020 
4. OPEN FORUM 
5. APPEALS* 

a) T19-0451, Kaiser v. Goldstone 
b) T19-0186, T19-0235, Didrickson v. Commonwealth 
c) T19-0202, Pacheco v. Newsome 

6. ACTION ITEMS 
7. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

a. Legislative Updates (Office of the City Attorney) 
 

8. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND SCHEDULING   
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 

As a reminder, alternates in attendance (other than those replacing an absent 
board member) will not be able to take any action, such as with regard to the 
consent calendar. 
 
Accessibility.  To request disability-related accommodations or to request an 
ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin or Spanish interpreter, please email 
sshannon@oaklandca.gov or call (510) 238- 3715 or California relay service at 
711 by 5:00 P.M. one day before the meeting.  
*Staff appeal summaries will be available at the Rent Program website and the Clerk’s  office at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting pursuant to O.M.C. 2.20.080.C and 2.20.090 
 
 
 Si desea solicitar adaptaciones relacionadas con discapacidades, o para pedir 
un intérprete de en español, Cantones, Mandarín o de lenguaje de señas (ASL) 
por favor envié un correo electrónico a sshannon@oaklandca.gov o llame al 
(510) 238-3715 o 711 por lo menos cinco días hábiles antes de la reunión.  

000002



 

3  

 
需要殘障輔助設施, 手語, 西班牙語, 
粵語或國語翻譯服務, 請在會議前五個工作天電郵 sshannon@oaklandca.gov 
或致電 (510) 238-3715 或 711 California relay service. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

000003



1 

R. HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION
BOARD FULL BOARD SPECIAL MEETING 

October 8, 2020 
5:00 P.M. 

VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE 
OAKLAND, CA 

MINUTES 
1. CALL TO ORDER

The Board meeting was administered via Zoom by H. Grewal, Housing and
Community Development Department. He explained the procedure for
conducting the meeting. The HRRRB meeting was called to order at 5:00
p.m. by Chair, R. Stone.

2. ROLL CALL

MEMBER STATUS PRESENT ABSENT EXCUSED 
T. HALL Tenant X 
R. AUGUSTE Tenant X 
H. FLANERY Tenant Alt. X 
Vacant Tenant Alt. 

R. STONE Homeowner X 
A. GRAHAM Homeowner X 
S. DEVUONO-
POWELL

Homeowner          X 

E. LAI Homeowner Alt.          X 
J. MA POWERS Homeowner Alt. X 

K. FRIEDMAN Landlord X 
T. WILLIAMS Landlord X 
B. SCOTT Landlord Alt. X 
K. SIMS Landlord Alt. X 

Staff Present 

Kent Qian Deputy City Attorney 
Chanee Franklin Minor Program Manager, Rent Adjustment Program 
Barbara Kong-Brown  Senior Hearing Officer, Rent Adjustment  

Program 

000004



 

2  

3. CONSENT ITEMS 
 

a) Approval of Board Minutes from September 24, 
2020, Full Board Special Meeting 
 
 E. Lai asked if a Board member could vote to 
approve the minutes if one was not present at a 
Board meeting. K. Qian responded that one can vote 
to approve the minutes even if the Board member is 
absent from the Board meeting.  

 
   T. Hall stated that she moved to affirm the      
hearing decision in L19-0037, Pan Pacific Corp. LLC 
v. Tenants. R. Auguste moved to approve the 9/24/20 
Rent Board minutes with the correction. A. Graham 
seconded. 
 
The Board voted as follows:  

   
Aye:  T. Hall, R. Auguste, R. Stone, A. Graham, K. Friedman, 
T. Williams 
Nay: None 
Abstain: E. Lai  

    
The motion carried. 
 

4. OPEN FORUM 

James Vann, Oakland Tenants’ Union 
• Is pleased that member R. Auguste raised the issue of 

“Neutral” members and the term does not define the 3d 
category of Board members who are not tenants or owners. 

• The tenant at the last Board meeting commented that his 
petition be withdrawn, that he did not understand what he was 
doing, and the hearing officer should have explained to the 
tenant what that word meant. 

  Hannah Flanery, Tenant Alternate Representative, Rent Board 
• Supports action item 6a regarding the use of the term 

“Neutral” to identify Board members who are not landlord or 
tenant representatives; labeling certain Board members as 
“Neutral” and others as not muddies the waters. 

 
 

000005



 

3  

  Michael Kaufman, Tenant  
• Has a question about the video for the Zoom meeting. H. 

Grewal responded that the meeting is audio only. R. Stone 
stated this is pursuant to City policy. 

  Paul Kranz, Attorney 
• Represents a tenant and wanted to be sure that the Board 

can hear him. 
  Jackie Zaneri, Alliance of Californians for Community Empowerment 

• Supports the proposal to change the term “Neutral” and 
wants to amend the board if an organization or law firm 
represents people in front of the Rent Board. 

  Gregory McConnell 
• Is fine with Zoom audio for the Rent Board hearing  

5. APPEALS 

a) T18-0018, Sund v. Vernon Street Apartments LP aka Flynn 
Family Holdings 

  Appearances: Paul Kranz            Tenant Representative 
     Gregory McConnell Owner Representative 

  P. Kranz requested another continuance of this appeal on the 
grounds that part of the Board packet was improperly copied. He stated that 
a number of pages were blacked out or illegible and the attachment to his 
appeal brief which consisted of part of the transcript of the hearing, was not 
attached. He emailed C. Franklin Minor who responded that she would get 
back to him and he has not heard from her.  
 ` C. Minor Franklin stated there was not enough time to discuss the 
representative’s request and the Board has the authority to grant a 
continuance. 
  B. Kong-Brown stated that she granted a continuance for the last 
board meeting based on P. Kranz’s representation that certain pages were 
illegible or blacked out. She reviewed the pages cited by P. Kranz and noted 
these pages were legible and were not blacked out. She found additional 
pages that were illegible and asked staff to correct those pages. She 
omitted the transcript to the appellant’s brief on the grounds that it exceeded 
25 pages.   
  G. McConnell stated that he was lambasted by the tenant 
representative when he requested a continuance, who also did not serve 
him the documents for his review. He would like the opportunity to review 
the tenant’s documents so he can also provide transcript excerpts. 
  After Board discussion A. Graham moved to grant a continuance in 

000006



 

4  

order to have a clear and legible board packet and stated he was open to a 
friendly amendment for inclusion of the transcript. R. offered a friendly 
amendment to include the entire transcript of the hearing. E. Lai seconded 
the friendly amendment, which was accepted. 
 
The Board voted as follows:  

 
Aye:   R. Auguste, A. Graham, R. Stone, E. Lai, K. Friedman 
Nay:  T. Hall, T. Williams 
Abstain: None 
 

The motion carried. 
 

b) T17-0221, Kaufman v. Nguyen 
Appearances: James Vann   Tenant Representative 
    Jennifer Nguyen  Owner     
  This is an appeal from a Board Remand Decision. The tenant 
representative argued that the tenant moved into his unit in July 2014. His 
first RAP notice was served in 2016. A prior decision in T16-0482 stated 
that the rent increases for 2014 and 2015 were invalid. When the new 
owner acquired the property, this established a new base rent and the rent 
increases for 2014 and 2015 were moot. 
  The owner contended that the Banked rent increases were permitted 
by the Rent Ordinance. 
  The Board remanded the case to the Hearing Officer with specific 
instructions regarding the issue of law regarding accrual of Banking where 
there was a prior  improperly served rent increase notice and whether a 
proper service of a rent increase notice entitles the owner to a full Banking  
increase. 
  The Hearing Officer’s Remand Decision stated that the failure to 
provide the RAP notice in prior years does not affect the owner’s right to a 
full Banking increase. 

  After arguments and rebuttal made by both parties, Board questions 
to the parties and Board discussion R. Stone moved to affirm the Hearing 
Decision. K. Friedman seconded the motion. 

 
The Board voted as follows:  

 
Aye: T. Hall, R. Auguste, A. Graham, R. Stone, K. Friedman, E. Lai, 
T. Williams 
Nay:  None 
Abstain: None 

000007



 

5  

 
The motion was approved by consensus. 
 

c) T19-0196, Yoquelet v. Oaktown Properties 
Appearances: Corey Yoquelet  Tenant 
    Dima Tsenter  Owner     
  The Hearing Officer denied the tenant petition on the grounds that 
the subject property was exempt from the Rent Ordinance as a single-
family residence. 
  The tenant contended that the Hearing Officer’s decision is not 
supported by substantial evidence, and he was denied the opportunity to 
introduce documentary exhibits and testimony of prior tenancies, as well as 
the opportunity to offer rebuttal evidence to impeach the owner. 
  The owner contended that the subject property is a single-family 
residence and was in excellent condition at the time of the rental in April 
2016. There are no maintenance requests from the tenants, no outstanding 
violations against the owner, and no prior tenant evictions in the prior 
tenancy. 

  After arguments and rebuttal made by both parties, Board questions 
to the parties and Board discussion, E. Lai moved to affirm the Hearing 
Decision. T. Hall seconded the motion. 

 
The Board voted as follows:  

 
Aye: T. Hall, K. Friedman, T. Williams, E. Lai 
Nay:  A. Graham, R. Stone 
Abstain: R. Auguste 
 

The motion carried. 
 

6. ACTION ITEMS 
a) Nomenclature 

R. Auguste proposed to discontinue the practice of referring 
to Board members who are not tenants or owners as “neutral” 
as all Board members are neutral. Referring to such Board 
members as “neutral” gives a false impression. The third 
category for Board members is someone who is not a tenant 
or property owner. She proposed that the third category of 
representative be designated as “At-large” or “Undesignated.” 
After Board discussion R. Auguste moved to discontinue the 
practice of using the word “Neutral” for Board members and 

000008



 

6  

to refer to themselves as “Member” or “Commissioner”, and 
for a quorum to refer to the third category of Board member 
as “Undesignated member.” T. Hall offered a friendly 
amendment to exclude the use of “Commissioner” and 
seconded the motion. 
 

 The Board voted as follows:  
 

Aye: R. Auguste, T. Hall, R. Stone, T. Williams, E. Lai,  
Nay:  K. Friedman 
Abstain: A. Graham 
 
The motion carried. 

 
 R. Auguste will reach out to the Mayor’s office about which term the Mayor 
wishes to use when referring to the board members who are not property owners 
or tenants. 
 

7. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

a) Legislative Updates 

K. Qian reported that the Efficiency Ordinance was amended 
at the 1st reading. Each party now has 6 minutes for 
presentation instead for 15 minutes. The Board will still have 
unlimited time for questions and can adjust the time for good 
cause. The Ordinance provides for a single appeal officer in a 
simple case. This was amended to limit this to cases where 
the parties did not appear or did not respond to a petition.  
The Ordinance also requires the parties to serve petitions on 
the opposing party. This task was performed by staff prior to 
this Ordinance. The purpose of the Ordinance is to improve 
efficiency. The Amendments also provide that RAP staff will 
serve the documents if they exceed 25 pages. The 2nd 
reading is scheduled for October 20, 2020 and will be 
effective immediately upon 6 votes of the City Council 
passing the Ordinance. If there are 5 votes the Ordinance 
goes into effect 7 days later. 

b) Regulations to Implement TPO Ordinance 

K. Qian stated they are preparing edits to the proposed 
regulations before presentation to the Ad Hoc Committee and 
hope to get a draft next week. R. Stone requested a copy of 
the proposed regulations. C. Franklin Minor stated that a 

000009



 

7  

sublease addendum has been drafted and will be posted on 
the RAP website by the end  

c) Outreach Activities 

C. Franklin Minor stated that there were several outreach 
highlights and copies of the materials will be attached for the 
next Board meeting 

8. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND SCHEDULING 

a) None 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The HRRRB meeting was adjourned at 8:14 p.m. by Board Chair R. Stone. 

 

000010



000011



000012



000013



000014



000015



000016



000017



000018



000019



000020



000021



000022



000023



000024



000025



000026



000027



000028



000029



000030



000031



000032



000033



000034



000035



000036



000037



000038



000039



000040



000041



000042



000043



000044



000045



000046



000047



000048



000049



000050



000051



000052



000053



000054



000055



000056



000057



000058



000059



000060



000061



000062



000063



000064



000065



000066



000067



000068



000069



000070



000071



000072



000073



000074



000075



000076



000077



000078



000079



000080



000081



000082



000083



000084



000085



000086


	Board Agenda Special Meeting 10-22-2020
	Full Board Special Meeting Minutes, 10-8-20
	Kaiser v. Goldstone Management
	Didrickson v. Commonwealth Company
	Pacheco v. Newsome



